
  
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE ADVERTISING AND PROMOTION COMMITTEE OF THE TOWN 
OF PINETOP-LAKESIDE, ARIZONA, HELD ON SEPTEMBER 23, 2015 IN THE TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS.  
Chairman Petersen called the meeting to order at 9:01 a.m. 
 
ROLL CALL:   Present   Absent    Present   Absent 
 
Chairman Joe Petersen    X                   Jeffrey McKee      X                      
Vice Chair Rica Girardi      X                    Gil Armijo      X _       _   _        
Lynn Krigbaum      X                 Kathy Dahnk      X          ____       
Vacant - Sunrise                                    Steve Berman         _          X                 
Mayor Smith        _       X _     Diane Tilton  _  X          _                    
  
STAFF PRESENT:  Jill Akins, Assistant to the Town Clerk, John Vuolo, Director of Parks and Recreation, Barbara 
Ashley, Finance Director and Leah Chavez, Town Clerk.   
 
OTHERS PRESENT:  Sam John, Larry John Wright Advertising, Crystal O’Donnell, Director of Pinetop-Lakeside 
Chamber of Commerce, Patrick Place, Vice Mayor, Dara Vanesian, Councilmember and Hugh Keeler, Sunrise Ski 
Park.    
 
ITEM NO. 2, CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  
  
Vice Chairman Girardi said the Town is undergoing a restructuring, and said the Town Manager is 
implementing the restructuring.  She said the Town Manager spoke to the Town Councilmembers and the 
Councilmembers where aware some changes would be made, but said they were not all aware that it would go 
into place.  She said she wants everyone to be aware that this restructuring is happening, and said she has not 
seen the plan.  She said she had asked for the plan, and for financials, for a time line, and for how the plan is 
supposed to better the Town, and said she has not received any of the information that she had asked for.  She 
said she is still hoping to receive this information.  She said change is scary and fearful, and said she and a lot 
of people are concerned because they have not been able to see the plan and therefore do not know what is 
happening and cannot help to facilitate the plan to make the Town a better community.  She said whatever 
happens with the Town affects her business whether it is good or bad.  She would like to be apprised of the 
changes that would be happening.  She said for everyone to ask questions and find out what the Town 
Manager’s plan is.  She said the first part of the plan is to retire John Vuolo and Paul Esparza, and she said 
these are two Town employees who see the businesses and citizens the most from the Town.  Mr. Esparza dealt 
with Town businesses and Mr. Vuolo dealt with the people of the community and visitors to the community.  
She said the two positions had been eliminated and said she does not know if those positions would be filled 
or not, and said this scares her.  She said she would like to see the plan, and said she would be calling everyone 
individually to find out what the plan is and can make sure it would be a good plan for the Town.   
 
Committeemember Krigbaum said the White Mountain Chorale has a Fall Festival concert at 7:00 p.m. at Blue 
Ridge auditorium on Friday, September 25, 2015.   
 
Chairman Petersen said he agrees with Vice Chairman Girardi’s comments.  He said the Pinetop-Lakeside 
Chamber would be having a BBQ on October 14, 2015 to say good bye to John Vuolo and Paul Esparza.  He said 
the BBQ would be from 11:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. He said the public is invited to come by and say “thank you” to 
both Mr. Vuolo and Mr. Esparza. He said the Chamber would provide a BBQ item and everyone is asked to 
bring a side dish to share.  He thanked the Chamber for the free event, and said it is a great cause and would 
be a good time. 



 
ITEM NO. 3, CONSENT AGENDA MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING HELD AUGUST 19, 2015: 
 
COMMITTEEMEMBER DAHNK MOVED TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING HELD 
AUGUST 19, 2015. COMMITTEEMEMBER KRIGBAUM SECONDED THE MOTION AND IT CARRIED 
UNANIMOUSLY.  
 
ITEM NO. 4, REPORT FROM THE BUDGET SUBCOMMITTEE ON THE ADVERTISING AND PROMOTION 
COMMITTEE BUDGET FOR FY 2014-2015: 
 
Barbara Ashley said she emailed the numbers out on Tuesday, September 22, 2015 to staff and the 
Committeemembers.  She said there is a fund balance of $44,401.55.  She said the year to date expenditures 
are within the target of the two months available.  She said she did run the September numbers to check on 
any major activity that would not be reflected, and said the Committee is still good.  She said there is a fund 
balance of $43,936 as of the morning of September 23, 2015.  Chairman Petersen asked what the carry 
forward from the previous year is.  Ms. Ashley said $18,573 was budgeted carry over, but said $24,781 had 
been carried over.  She said this amount is before audit.  She said the Committee does have extra cash 
available.  Vice Chairman Petersen said $12,500 had been set aside for website development, and said the 
additional funds are in a secured account.   
 
ITEM NO. 5, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION REGARDING UPDATE BY CHAIRMAN PETERSEN ON THE ADVERTISING 
AND PROMOTION RETREAT WITH THE TOWN COUNCIL: 
 
Chairman Petersen said the Town Council had a retreat on Friday, September 11, 2015 and met with the 
Advertising and Promotion Committee for two hours.  Committeemember Krigbaum said Chairman Petersen 
did a great job and wonderfully represented the Advertising and Promotion Committee.  She said Chairman 
Petersen, Vice Chairman Girardi and Committeemember Dahnk gave an excellent overview and an 
enthusiastic presentation.  She said it is very exciting being on the Advertising and Promotion Committee now, 
and said Sam John with Larry John Wright does a great job.  Chairman Petersen said a PowerPoint was used to 
compare financials from 2013, 2014 and 2015.  He said the website was discussed at the retreat.  He said last 
year the Advertising and Promotion Committee had sent aside $12,500 to develop an enhanced 
visitpinetoplakesideaz website. He said currently there is a visitpinetoplakesideaz website, but said it needs a 
facelift.  He said Mr. John has done a facelift to the website for no cost.  He said a RFQ was sent out to bid for 
a new website, and said all three of the proposals received were declined by the Committee.  He said it was 
said during the Advertising and Promotion retreat in December 2014 by the Town Manager to combine the 
visitpinetoplakesideaz and the .gov website.  He said at first there was hesitation on combining both the sites.  
He said when the three proposals were received it was decided they were not what the Committee wanted. 
He said the Town Manager decided to move forward on the .gov website and did not let the Advertising and 
Promotions Committee know of her decision.  He said when the website was discussed at the Town Council 
retreat Councilmember Leslee Wessel said the Advertising and Promotion dropped the ball on the entire 
website issue.  He said there are numerous problems with the new Town website, and said he was informed 
the Town is trying to work out the problems.  He said the person that designed the new .gov website was one 
of the presenters who submitted a bid to the Advertising and Promotion Committee, and had since then 
moved out of the state.  He said at the retreat there was discussion going back and forth regarding the 
website issue, and said he feels very strongly that the Advertising and Promotion Committee did not drop the 
ball.  He said all along Mr. John had been working with his crew to give the current website a facelift, and said 
Mr. John had used his own time at no cost.  He said Vice Chairman Girardi and Committeemember Dahnk had 
formed a subcommittee to reignite the need for a new visitpinetoplakeside.com website.  He said it is 
concerning that a Town Councilmember that had not attended any of the Advertising and Promotion meetings 



would make that statement at the Council retreat.  He said he had asked the Vice Mayor and Councilmember 
Vanesian to attend the Advertising and Promotion Meetings.  He said if the Town Council has questions they 
can ask the Vice Mayor and Councilmember Vanesian and not make blanket statements, and said 
Councilmember Wessel is not in attendance today, but said he would make sure she receives a copy of the 
meeting minutes to read through.  He said he wants his words to be clearly recorded.  Vice Chairman Girardi 
said the retreat was good, and said the Committee did let the Council know what Advertising and Promotion 
has accomplished, what is currently happening and where the numbers are.  She said Sam John had done 
great to give the Committee new ideas to explore, and said the Committee is very lucky to work with Mr. John.  
She said she is glad the Vice Mayor and Councilmember Vanesian are attending the meeting, and said the 
Town Council and Advertising and Promotion need to work as a team and do what is good for the Town.  
Chairman Petersen said in 2013 17,000 people visited the website.  He said in August 2015 the website had 
almost 17,000 visitors, and said no extra money had been spent on the website.  Vice Chairman Girardi said 
the Committee has a very good relationship with the Chamber and the Chamber has a very good relationship 
with the business people, and said it is important to speak positive of the Chamber, support the Chamber and 
continue to partner with the Chamber.  Councilmember Vanesian asked why the Town Manager was not in 
attendance.  Ms. Akins said she was in an ADOT meeting.  Chairman Petersen asked the Vice Mayor to thank 
the Mayor and Council for letting the Advertising and Promotion Committee attend the Council Retreat.  He 
said it was honest and open communication at the Retreat and said the Committee has a better idea of what 
the Committee’s job is.   
 
ITEM NO. 6, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION/LEGAL ACTION REGARDING CHAMBER OF COMMERCE REQUESTING 
FUNDING FOR BEST CABIN REGION BUMBER STICKERS: 
 
Ms. O’Donnell said the bumper stickers would be for Voted Best Cabin Region.  She said the 
visitpinetoplakeside.com would be added on to the bumper stickers.  She said she received a quote from High 
5 Design.  She said the bumper stickers would be given away to Chamber visitors and said they would be given 
to all of the hotels in Town.  Discussion ensued regarding the bumper stickers.  Mr. John said bumper stickers 
are similar to a billboard and internet banner ads, and said the less wording on the sticker the better.  He 
suggested having visitpinetoplakeside.com as the header on the bumper sticker.  He said he likes having 
Arizona’s Recreation Destination on the bumper sticker.  Ms. O’Donnell said it would be $600.00 plus tax for 
fifteen hundred bumper stickers.   
 
VICE CHAIRMAN GIRARDI MOVED TO SPEND NO MORE THAN $700.00 FOR FIFTEEN HUNDRED BUMPER 
STICKERS.  COMMITTEEMEMBER DAHNK SECONDED THE MOTION AND IT CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.   
 
ITEM NO. 7 DISCUSSION/INFORMATION/LEGAL ACTION REGARDING PRESENTATION BY KATHY DAHNK FOR A 
POSSIBLE ADVERTISEMENT IN THE ARIZONA OFFICE OF TOURISM VISITORS GUIDE AND WEBSITE: 
 
Committeemember Dahnk said she is retired from the Arizona Office of Tourism, and said they are a state 
tourism board.  She said she was wondering why Pinetop-Lakeside had not had great exposure in their 
literature, and said she went on a search to find out the answer.  She said things had changed considerably 
with the department, and said in order to have exposure advertisements had to be bought.  She said the 
current advertising program is extremely high priced.  She said she did ask if there were any other options 
with the Office of Tourism, and said there are online and e newsletters.  She said this might be the best 
opportunity for the Committee.  Mr. John said the items to consider are the market, the cost, the message and 
the media.  She said there would be different themes offered in the email outreach.  She said she does not 
want the Committee to take action on the item today, but said for all of the Committeemembers to review the 
information.  She said 500,000 copies of the guide is printed and said it is distributed worldwide.  Chairman 
Petersen said the item would be tabled until the October meeting.  Mr. John said a good benchmark to use is 



cost per thousand and what would bring the most value.  He said the online banners ads are $16.00 cost per 
thousand, compared to the banners ads on OOIA which are $1.47 per thousand.  He said this is a huge 
difference in cost to reach an individual.  He said the ad listings are $.90 per thousand, but said the ad size are 
small.  He said the Committee needs to consider if advertising with the Arizona Office of Tourism would be the 
best value for funds spent.  Committeemember Krigbaum said she appreciates Mr. Johns input, and said she 
hopes that Mr. John and Committeemember Dahnk will provide their recommendations in the future.  
Commiteemember Dahnk said the book is a free Office of Tourism publication.  She said the Office of Tourism 
budget was twenty million dollars in 2014.    
 
ITEM NO. 8, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION/LEGAL ACTION REGARDING ERIC KRAMER REQUESTING FUNDING 
AND PROMOTING FOR EVENING OF APACHE CULTURE FOR JUNE 2016: 
 
Eric Kramer said he is not requesting funding, but said he wants the Committee to be aware of this event and 
how it affects the tourism for the community of Pinetop-Lakeside.  He said the Native Woman’s purpose is to 
provide scholarships for women on the Apache Reservation.  He said June 2014 was the first Evening of 
Apache Culture held at Pico’s nursery, and said two hundred people attended the event.  He said the purpose 
was to introduce native women scholars to the community, and said over eight thousand dollars was received.  
He said in July 2015 $19,750 in scholarships was given to ten apache women for the 2015/2016 school year.  
He said last week Chairman Lupe addressed the Pinetop-Lakeside Town Council stressing the two communities 
are tied together.  He said this is an effort to bridge the cultures, and said education is a good economic 
impact.  Mr. Kramer said apache culture is a good draw to fill hotel rooms and restaurants in Pinetop-Lakeside.  
He said the Pow Wow had been cancelled this year, and said this event would fill a void. He wanted the 
Committee to be aware of the event, and said it would be growing each year.  He said the setting at Pico’s 
nursery is beautiful, and said within a few years they would outgrow this venue.  He said he would like the 
Committee to remember this event in the coming year as advertising is being done.  He said he would like to 
partner with the Committee in publishing the event and making the event known to people around the state. 
He said it would be held on June 10, 2106, and would be held at Pico’s nursery.  Chairman Petersen said he is 
trying to push the native culture in advertising and events.  He said there was a great opportunity with two 
hundred and fifty people from the Harley group and said the Crown Dancers were a no show for the event.  He 
said Native culture is a great draw, and said tribal culture would be promoted.      
 
ITEM NO. 9, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION/LEGAL ACTION REGARDING PRESENTATION BY WILEY ACHESON, 
WHITE MOUNTAIN INDEPENDENT, FOR AN ADVERTISING OPPORTUNITY: 
 
Wiley Acheson and Brian Kramer, both from the White Mountain Independent, presented a power point 
presentation for an advertising opportunity in the Take a Hike publication.  He said it is a comprehensive guide 
to hiking in the White Mountains.  He said TRACKS is contributing photos and articles.  He said it would be a 
magazine and would be a retail piece, and said White Mountain Independent would be donating a large 
amount of the magazines to TRACKS and to the Nature Center.  He said this would be a full glossy product, and 
said it would be glossy throughout the magazine.  He said it would also include off road trails, mountain biking 
and equine trail riding, and said each trail will include a legend stating what is acceptable on the trail.  He said 
a full page advertisement would include a trail of the week premium sponsorship to forty-two hundred email 
subscribers.  He said a full page ad would be $825.00 including the trail of the week sponsorship.  Brian Kramer 
said the magazines would be distributed in the East Valley areas of Phoenix including distribution on the 
Mountain.  He said the magazine is printed every five years.  He said trail of the week would be for one year in 
2016. He said five thousand magazines would be printed, and said if they run out of magazines they would 
reprint.  Chairman Petersen said this would be great to have them available at the Sportsman Expo in March of 
2016.  Mr. Kramer said the magazine would cost $2.00, but said complimentary copes would also be 
distributed to Chambers of Commerce. John Vuolo said his concern is the quantity to provide, and said TRACKS 



would distribute five to ten thousand in one year.  He asked if a higher number could be printed.  He said he 
would encourage the Committee to be involved in the magazine, and said the trails are an economic engine 
for the Town.  Mr. Wiley said the publication would be on line, and said the Trail of the Week wood have a link 
to the magazine.  More discussion ensued regarding the advertisement.  Chairman Petersen said Mr. John 
would put together an advertisement for the magazine.  
 
COMMITTEEMEMBER KRIGBAUM MOVED TO SPEND $825.00 FOR A PREMIUM SPONSORSHIP AND A FULL 
PAGE ADVERTISEMENT IN THE TAKE A HIKE MAGAZINE. COMMITTEEMEMBER DAHNK SECONDED THE 
MOTION AND IT CARRIED FIVE TO TWO WITH COMMITTEEMEMBER MC KEE AND VICE CHAIRMAN GIRARDI 
OPPOSED.    
 
Mr. John said the magazine supports the community, and said the reach is five thousand people for the print 
ad and forty-four hundred for the email reach.  Mr. John said the cost per thousand would be one hundred 
and sixty five dollars compared to the sixteen dollar cost per thousand for the Arizona tourism guide.  He said 
the price is low, but said the publication is not reaching very many people.  He said it is supporting the 
community and said it is a published magazine to reach five thousand people.  Committeemember McKee said 
a full page ad is large, and asked if there is enough information to fill a full page ad.  Committeemember 
Dahnk said the Committee would only receive the Hike of the Week and the email if a full page ad was bought.  
Committeemember McKee said he is concerned the five thousand published magazines would run out in six 
months, and said he does not see the value in such a limited run.  Mr. Vuolo said Pinetop-Lakeside is the 
headquarters for TRACKS and the White Mountain Trail System, and said six months of advertising is needed 
from spring through summer to support our trail system.  He said this magazine would be in our Town when 
the visitors are in Town, and said it would help visitors return for many more weekends.  Mr. Kramer said half 
of the magazines would be distributed on the mountain and the other half would be distributed in the valley.  
He said the magazine would be reprinted as needed throughout the year.  He said the magazine would also be 
distributed in waiting rooms, and said multiple people would read each copy.  Mr. Kramer said the deadline 
for the print ad would be as soon as possible.   
  
ITEM NO. 10, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION REGARDING PROMOTING PINETOP-LAKESIDE BY GIVING AWAY FREE 
PACKETS OF FLOWER SEEDS: 
 
Vice Mayor Place said in Solvang, California visitors to the Chamber of Commerce are given packets of flower 
seeds to spread while walking through town.  Committeemember Tilton said seed packets were given away at 
the Hummingbird Festival.  Committeemember Dahnk said our community is not a walking community where 
visitor can park and walk.  Chairman Petersen said it is an interesting and fun idea instead of always having 
traditional advertising.  Mr. Vuolo said the idea of giving something away to visitors would provide interest 
and impact and is a wonderful.  Committeemember Dahnk said thinking out side of the box for advertising 
would provide something very different and unique.  She said to have the free giveaway tie in with an event in 
Town.  Chairman Petersen suggested a Nature Center event or Walk to the Woods.  Mr. John said thinking out 
the advertising box is still spending money, but said it is still marketing.  He said it would be similar to the 
Facebook contest receiving a lot of attention but not costing anything.  He said excitement can be created 
through Facebook for no cost.  He said the seed packets are an awesome idea to either spread throughout the 
Town or to take home as a vacation reminder.  Committeemember Tilton said being a biologist she would 
have to caution spreading seeds in the forest would be invasive.  She said she would encourage visitors to take 
the packets home or spread in Town and not out in the forest.  Mr. John said if visitors take them home is 
would create a great memory of Pinetop-Lakeside.   Chairman Petersen said more research would be done or 
pricing and giveaway ideas, and said this would be revisited as a future agenda idea.      
 



ITEM NO. 11, DISCUSSION/INFORMAION REGARDING UPDATE ON THE NEW VISITPINETOPLAKESIDE.COM 
WEBSITE: 
 
Chairman Petersen said $12,500 was held back for the possible combining of the web sites.  He said Leah 
Chavez, Town Clerk, would help on the subcommittee regarding the merging of the websites.  He said Mr. 
John would give his input for the RFP for the website since he would be managing the site. Leah Chavez said 
she met with Committeemember Dahnk and Vice Chairman Girardi, and said it was a good, positive meeting 
and would be moving forward.  She said the question of funding has been asked of to the Town Manager and 
the Mayor of who would be paying for the .gov part of the website.  She said the .gov site does needs to have 
modifications and clean-up done.  She said the format that she, Committeemember Dahnk and Vice Chairman 
Girardi agreed upon was the iamamsterdam web site.  She said this site has a government site and a visit site, 
and said it would be two separate websites with one domain name.  She said it would be a partitioned 
website.  She said there would be a mandatory pre-bid meeting held two weeks before the bid due date.  She 
said there would be specific things and different requirements for each site.  She said the subcommittee 
would be looking at other similar websites for ideas.  She said the subcommittee could meet two more times 
before the RFP is sent out.  She said she would be giving updates regarding the website at the Advertising and 
Promotion Meetings.  Chairman Petersen said the website visits are over sixteen thousand a month.  Vice 
Chairman Girardi said the Advertising and Promotion Committee should not have to fund the changes needed 
on the government site.  She said the issued is the Town spent close to ten thousand dollars in the last year on 
a government site that needs to be fixed, and said she does not want the Advertising and Promotion 
Committee to fund the fixing of the site.   
 
ITEM NO. 12, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION/LEGAL ACTION REGARDING DISCUSSION OF POSSIBLE DATES FOR 
AN ADVERTISING AND PROMOTION RETREAT IN NOVEMBER: 
 
Chairman Petersen said the Advertising and Promotion Committee has a four to five hour retreat held in 
November or December each year.  He said last year Vice Chairman Girardi hosted the retreat at El Rancho. He 
said the retreat is to talk about the marketing plan, next year’s budget and numerous other items.  He said Mr. 
John and Town representatives would attend.  He said a regular public meeting would be held followed by the 
retreat.  Ms. Chavez said the Committee can change the current meeting dates and time if it would help in 
receiving the financial numbers prior to the monthly meeting.   She said it would take action by the Town 
Council to change the regular meeting dates.  She said this would be an agenda item for the Committee to 
discuss at the retreat.  Discussion ensued regarding the date for the retreat.  Vice Chairman Petersen said the 
retreat would be held on November 18, 2015.  He said the regular meeting would start at 9:00 a.m. with the 
retreat to follow.  He said the location would be decided at a later time.   
 
 
 
 
ITEM NO. 13, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION/LEGAL ACTION REGARDING UPDATE AND INFORMATION BY SAM 
JOHN OF LARRY JOHN WRIGHT ADVERTISING: 
 
Mr. John said when a search is done for Pinetop-Lakeside the .gov site comes up first, the Chamber is second 
and the visit site is third.  He said when hiking in Pinetop or events in Pinetop is searched the Arizona hiking 
site would come up first.  He said the visit site is number five on the search.  More discussion ensued regarding 
search engine optimization.  He said there were 16,233 visits to the website for the month of August 2015, 
and said there was a slight drop in organic search at two hundred clicks.  He said the OOTV targeted 
impressions were around 400,000, and said it is on track to have a good September this year.  He said the 
OOTV full video views were up in August 2015, and said this was a record of 250,000 full video views for 



August 2015. He said the OOTV website clicks for August 2015 were the same as July 2015.  He said the OOIA 
website clicks were up in August 2015 over July 2015.  He said the Facebook impressions are a sum of people 
seeing the posts, and said the Facebook likes increased to 2,524 in August 2015. Mr. John said for the month 
of October 2015 he does not recommend spending money on traditional advertising.  He said at the October 
meeting he would have recommendations on advertising for November. Chairman Petersen said another 
Facebook contest would happen in October and November 2015. 
 
ITEM NO. 14, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION BY THE PINETOP-LAKESIDE CHAMBER OF COMMERCE ON 
FESTIVALS, ACTIVITES, STATISTICS, TRACKING AND TOURISM: 
 
Ms. O’Donnell said the Harley Group was in Town on Tuesday and Wednesday night, and said on Wednesday 
night a function was held at the Orchard at Charlie Clarks.  She said the Town was very welcoming and the 
Harley group said this was the nicest stop on the tour.  Chairman Petersen said there were two hundred and 
fifty Harley riders in Town.  He said they arrived Tuesday afternoon for shopping and eating out, and said on 
Wednesday the riders went on several regional tours.  He said the Orchard at Charlie Clarks welcomed the 
riders and they were treated to an outdoor band, great food and the Mayor and his wife welcomed the riders.  
He said with the exception of two riders all of the other riders were from outside of Arizona.  Chairman 
Petersen said he and a small group of business owners are going to bid for the Arizona States Hog Rally to be 
held in Pinetop in May or October 2016.  He said it would bring five hundred to seven hundred riders to Town.  
He said the rally is all Arizona riders, and said the rally is usually held in Williams, Arizona.  He said the rally in 
2015 would be held in Yuma, Arizona.  He said this would benefit the entire community.  He said the riders 
require five hundred hotel rooms, coupon books and a large asphalt area.  He said it would be a mini Sturgis 
event.   Ms. O’Donnell said Kimber Lanning was in Town for a weekend to show her around Town for the 2016 
Rural Policy Forum Conference that would be held in August 2016. She said the previous Saturday a Town 
clean-up was held and only five people showed up, and said she was disappointed.  She said the Wine in the 
Pines would like to return to Pinetop-Lakeside in June 2016.  She said Fall Festival is September 25th through 
the 27th, 2015.  She said the carnival and art show would be held at Mountain Meadow Recreation. She said 
the Cavalcade of Cars starts in Show Low at 4:00 p.m. on Friday, September 25, 2015.  She said the Burger 
Burn would be held at Mountain Meadow on Thursday, September 24th from 6:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m.  She said 
there would be beer for sale at the Burger Burn.  She said on Monday, September 28th the Chamber would be 
closed.         
 
 
 
 
 
ITEM NO. 15, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION BY THE TOWN OF PINETOP-LAKESIDE PARKS AND RECREATION 
DEPARTMENT: 
 
Mr. Vuolo said Cool Running would be held on Saturday, September 26, 2015.  He said registration is down 
this year and said it could be due to the difficulty the Town is having with the website. He said the information 
was on the bottom of the Parks and Recreation page on the website, and said it was difficult to find. He said 
also on Saturday there would be a High School Cross Country meet that would bring in sixteen teams.  He said 
the Tour of the White Mountains would be held on Saturday, October 3, 2015.  Mr. John said Epic Rides had 
provided him with marketing material to promote the event.   Mr. Vuolo said this would be his last meeting as 
a representative of the Town of Pinetop-Lakeside Parks and Recreation Department. He said the Parks and 
Recreation Department would be managed by Public Works Director Matt Patterson.   
 
ITEM NO 16, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION BY THE ARIZONA GAME AND FISH DEPARTMENT: 



 
Committeemember Tilton said the Game and Fish Department would have an outdoor adventure area and 
other activities during Fall Festival at Mountain Meadow.    
 
ITEM NO. 17, DISCUSSION/INFORMATION REGARDING TOURISM ACTIVITIES ON TRIBAL LANDS: 
 
Chairman Petersen said Hugh Keeler is here to give an update on Sunrise activities.  Hugh Keeler said the 
Junior Pass Promotion would be held October 9, 10 and 11, 2015, and said all of the activities would be open 
at the resort.  He said the Eagles Nest restaurant would be open, and said the White Out Sale would be held in 
the cafeteria.  He said season passes are available to purchase on line.  He said season pass holders from last 
year would receive at forty dollar discount by using a promo code found on the website.  He said Sunrise 
would be selling reloadable gift cards this year.  He said the season pass information would be available at the 
Fall Festival.  He said the zip line had been postponed until the Spring of 2016.  He said the summer 2015 
revenues had an increase of thirty-three percent.  He said the college pass would be ninety-nine dollars for 
fulltime student’s enrolled fulltime in the fall 2015 semester. He said a tentative opening date for Sunrise 
would the weekend of November 20, 2015.  He said this is the weekend before Thanksgiving.  He said Sunrise 
would start with being open weekends only.        
 
 
 
 
 
  
The meeting adjourned at 11:17 a.m.  
       Advertising and Promotion Committee 
 
 
       _______________________________ 
        Jill Akins, Assistant to the Town Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


